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Jane Marrs, e t al, 

—vs-~ No. 109. 

The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations, 

—O - 0 - - 9 — 

Chas. I, MoPherren, Attorneys for Plaintiffs, 

Mansfield, McMurray and Cornish, for Defendants, 

— o — 

Present and presiding the Hons. Spencer B. A lams, Chief 

Judge, Walter L. Weaver and Henry 8. Foote, Associate 

Judges', 

— -0 — -0 — 

D B C I M 1 ' • * 7 t h . , 1 9 0 3 . This day th is 

cause coining on to be heard upon the part of the Plaintiff, 

both Plaint i f fs and Defendants being present by their 

Counsel and both having announced "Ready" the follow­

ing proceedings were had to-wit; 

Mr. MoPherren; 

If the Court please; th is i s a companion cas© to No. 78 

Epsie Underwood vs. The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations, 

the leading Plaintiff in that case being the s i s te r of the 

leading Plaint i f f in th i s case of Jane Marrs vs. The Choc­

taw and Chickasaw Nations; and * ask whether the Court 

will permit the testimony taken in the Underwood case to 

be used in tMs case, in so far as the same may be appli­

cable. 
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JUdge Adams; 

Has the Underwood case been heard,? 

Mr. Mc Pherren; 

Yes, sir. 

Judge Adams; 

Have you £pntl*MH .any objection? 

Mr. Cornish; 

Of course, that vould mean that the entire record woull be 

applied to th is case? 

Jud^e Adams; 

Yes, s i r , the wh-le record will be considered; and such 

evidence 91 i s applicable to the case. 

— o — 

J a n e M a r r s , 
* 

a Plaintiff , being s i sm, tes t i f ied as follows; — 

By Mr. McPherren; 

Q.- Yfoat i s your nnme? 

A.- Jane Marrs. 

Q.- How old are you? 

A.- That I cannot t e l l ; somewhere about sixty six, seven or 

eic^rt; I cannot say jus t what; 1 don't know my age;, 

Q.- "Ahere do you reside? 

A.- Iniianola, Indian Territory. 

Q.- Are you the identical Jane Marrs, who was one of the 

Plaint i f fs , in th is case? 

A.- Yes, s i r , I am the same* 

Q.- You are the Jane Marrs what was admitted to citizenship by 
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the United States Court? 

A.- Yes, n i r . 

Q.~ Have y;u any children? 

A.- Yes, s i r , 

• . - MO/IB your oldest child, 

A,- Mar/;garet. 

Q.- Is she l iving? 

A.- No, ?ir , nhe I t dead. 

. - Did ahe have any children? 

A,- Yen, sdr, she had four. 

Q.- d p w*ie married then, waa she? 

A,- Yen, nir* 

Q,- Who w&u she married to? 

A.-* A man by the nmm of l iarrs. 

.—Is he living? 

A,- Mo, s i r . 

Q.~He 1 | dead? 

A,- Yen, n i r . 

Q.- They were lewdly married, were they? 

A,—Yes, s i r . 

. - Burnt the i r children. 

A.—Clara Bell; Kobert, I cannot think of his double name. 

Q.- Robert I t sufficient, 

A.- Bttft J me. 

I . - They called h?r Jennie? 

A.- Yea, nir, they called her Jennie. 

Q,- Who el.ee. 

A.--Myrtle 
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- Name the next ch i ld . 

- El len . 

—Ihat in her name now? 

- Alderaon. 

- Has she any chi ldren? 

- Four. 

- Whom i t she married to? 

- Robert Alderson. 

m Xi he a white man? 

- Yes* s i r . 

- You say they have chi ldren? 

- Yeî f s i r . 

- G i v e t h e i r names. 

- Richard; J u l i a May, but she i s j u s t ca l led May; Barley, 

he sigM h i s name B.II.Alderson; J e r r y . 

- That a l l the chi ldren she has? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- She i s l ega l ly married to Alderson? 

- Yes, s i r . 

—Name your next ch i ld . 

- Beckie. 

- hat is her name now? 

- She is married. 

- Whom to ? 

- The first time she married Chas. Harrison. 

- Is he dead? 

- Yes, sir. 

He a whiteman? 

Yes, s i r . 
Did she have any chi ldren by Chas. Harrison? 
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- One. 

- What i s i t s name? 

- heuben. 

- Has she been married again? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- What ia her name now? 

- Rebecca Smith. 

- D i d she marry a whiteman? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- what i s h i s name? 

- George Smith. 

- I s she l ega l ly married to George Smith? 

- Yer̂ , s i r . 

- Did she have any chi ldren by him? 

- One. 

- What i s i t s name? 

- Jennie . 

- Name your next ch i ld . 

- Mary. 

- Mary inhat? 

- P r i t cha rd . 

- She married a man named Pr i tchard? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- I s he a white man? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- I s he l i v i n g ? 

- Yes, a i r . 

- I s sho l ega l ly married to him? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 
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Q.- Has she any children by him? 

- Yes, s i r , six-

- Name the®. 

- Flora, John, Dennis, Jennie, Rebecca and Icy. I believe 

i fjpt them i l l , 

- Have you any other children? 

- Yes s ir , Ju l ia A, Hamilton. 

- Is she married? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- Did she marry a white man? 

- Yen, sir. 

- Is she legally married to him? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- Has she any children? 

- Four. 

- Sunt them. 

- Dellfl May, Tandy, Thaddeus and 

- Have you any other children? 

- Yen, s i r . Earn Marrs. 

- I s he married? 

- Yen, s i r . Married a McDou^I. 

- I s that her maiden name? 

- Yen, s i r . 

^-lr she a white woman? 

—Yen, s i r . 

- Whre they legally married? 

-Ye" , s i r , 

- Have they any children? 

- Tvo. 
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Give thei r names. 

Bertha May arid Clarence. 

Have you any other children? 

Yes, s i r . 

None them. 

Tom Marrs, 

Is he married? 

No, s i r 

Have you arty others? 

John Marrs. 

Is he married? 

Yes, sir* 

Vihat i s his wife's nnme? 

Min.de Jfclnhanie. 

Have they any children? 

One, 

What i s i t s name. 

Nellie May, 

Who i s Minnie Marrs? 

She was John Marrs* wife. 

She was Minnine Mclnhanie? 

Yes, s i r . 

- tho i s Paul E. Hodge. 
Great 

- That i s ray grandson's name. He i s a son of Ellen AldcrBon. 

- She i s married? 

- To Bobert Hodges', 

- Thay have one child? 

- Yes, s i r . 
-Ir- Robert Hodgi a white nan? 

- Yes, sir* 
— 7 — 
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Q.- Are they legally married? 

A.- Yen, sir. 

Qs~ DD you claim to be a Choctaw Indian? 

A.- Yes, s i r , 

Q.- About how rmch blood do you claim? 

A.- I claim about one quarter; that i s what I have always 

been taught? I was. 

Q.- Who do you claim i t throu$i» 

A,- My mother. 

Q.- What was your mother*s name? 

A.- Mangaret Patterson, usually called P e . ^ e . 

<i.- Where did she l ive? 

A.- She formerly lived in Mississippi or Alabama; ri/^ii on the 

l ine, I don't know which. They moved around a great deal. 

Q.- fh«M did she die? 

A.- Lehi/^it Choctaw Nation. 

Q.- What was your grandfather's name? 

A.- John soi.ietikies, sometimes Herman. 

Q.- Jolm who? 

A.- John Patterson, or Herman Patterson. 

Q.- What was hie Indian name. 

A.- Moontubbie. 

. - Bop do you spell that? 

A.- Moontubbie, I do not know how i t le spelled. 

Q.- Where did he l ive? 

A.--After he come to th is country, in the Choctaw Nation, o 

I ion' t know where abouts. I never did see him. 

Q.- Was he a Choctaw Indian? 

A.- Yes, sir* 



Q.- Then your information i s you were born i n 1336 or 7? 

A,- Ye?;f s i r . 

Q.- Where? 

A.--1 cannot t e l l you; ri<t>t on the l ine between Mississippi 

anl Alabama; my mother to ld me once I was born on Hi© 

Mississippi s i d e . 

. - vuiat county was t h a t ? 

A.- I ton*t know; I l e f t tha t country "hen I wan a ch i ld . 

Q.- 'What pa r t of the State was i t ? 

A.- 1 don ' t know. 

Q.- Know whether you v?ere born in Alabama or L&ssissipoi? 

A.- No, rif^it on the l i n e . 

(,.- Your mother l ived u n t i l a few years arp? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- -here were you l i v i n g when you can f i r s t remember? 

A.- i t were in i/lissouri when I can f i r s t remember. 

',;.- BOW old wcre you when you can f i r s t remember? 

A.- About four yfars o ld . 

:4 . - Do you n o o n t e r l i n i n g i n Alabama or Miss iss ippi? 

A.- Ko, s i r , i was too small . 

,„.- than you f i r s t remember, you were l i v i n g in Missouri? 

A.- *es, s i r . 

Q.- t h t r t ? 

A,- Madison County. 

'*.- How long did you l i ve the re? 

A,- Twelve or fourteen years, may be a l i t t l e longer . 

Q.- I t r o your fa ther and mother both l i v i n g then? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- Did they own land i n tha t county? 

A.- Yes, ? i r . 



- Were they fanner a? 

• ^es f sxr. 

. - Did they Bell this land when th«y l e f t ? 

A.- I t s , s i r . 

Q.- "here lid you p from Madison County, Missouri? 

A.- To Texas. 

Q.-Ihat county? 

A.- Fannin Co inty. 

" . - You arrived in Famir; County what year? 

A.- 1MB four, five or six year- before the War. 

Q.- Your father and mother and their family, Including your. 

self, arrived in Fannin County, Texas, from Missouri 

four or fis/e years before the War? 

A.- Yen, s i r . 

- How long did you live in Fannin County, Texaftf 

- I auess I could count up. 

- Great many years? 

- Yes, s i r . 

-Did you live in any other county in Texas? 

- No, sir, been in others, but not to live. 

- You made your home there? 

- Yes, sir. 

-Did you marry there? 

- Yen, s i r . 

-Did your father and mother own land there? 

- Yes, s i r . 

-Did they homestead lani? 

- Mo, sir, they bought a small place. 

- They continued to own land until they left there? 
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A.- Yes, s i r . 

' \ - iara you marrie.i before the Y/ar? 

A.- Yaa, a i r , 

I . - Your father and husband oraed Land? 

A,- las , s i r . 

Q.- You l i v e ! then, from tfae time you married, unti l you 

-eft , on land you owned* 

A.- Yen, sir* 

Q.- Your children went to the puulic schools? 

A.- Ye3, s i r . 

. - Your hupband exercised the privileges of citizenship and 

voted in the elections? 

A.- Yen, s i r . 

Q.- Paid taxtaf 

A.- Taa, s i r . 

(';.- Mien did you move to th is country? 

A.- in eighty six or seven. 

Q.- Did your husband sell the Land which he owned in Texas, 

when he moved haref 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q..- la your husband living? 

A.- No, s i r . 

Q.- than did he die? 

A.- Several ye^rz p&at, 

Q.~ Ihare lid ycu l ive vtom you f i r s t came to the Choctaw 

Nation? 

A.- Caddo. 

0 . - lho?.e place? 

A.- Del'U'iey's. 
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Q.- Was he a ci t ixen? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

. - You paid rent? 

A..- Yon, s i r , 

. - Hon long did you live on that olace? 

A*- Two years. 

0 , - Fbr two years you lived on Del alley's land, cultivated land, 

sadl paid him rent? 

A,- Yep., s i r . 

P.- V.hero Sid you l ive when you l e f t there? 

A.- On the Canadian Eiver, near Indianola. 

, - fhoei olace? 

A.- Miditower's place. 

Qg- laa hi a c i t izen? 

A.- Yer, sir* 

Q.- Did you rent land and pay rent? 

A.- Yes, nir, 

Q.- How long lid you l ive on Miditower's place? 

A.- One year, 

Qf- Where did you ap then ? 

A. - Hu R£I Rami 1 ton * B pi ace. 

. - Did you pay rent? 

A.- Yes, all% 

0 , . '.'.here did you pp then. 

A.- Put In land of our own? 

. - fhftt year ma tha t? 

A.- 1093. 

'•.- That was about t i e t i n t your s i s t e r made amplication 

to Council? 
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A.- Yen, s i r , the year a f t e r t h a t . 

Q.- Did you Bttki appl icat ion to council? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

0 . - Y0u rut i n a t>lace about the time you made appl icat ion 

to Counci1? 

A.- Ho, had ua-le appl icat ion before' ' 

I . - That was while your appl ica t ion was before the Court? 

A.- Yes, •!*• 

Q.- what was the name of your mother? 

A.- Before she married? 

Q.- Yen. 

A,- She was Margaret Pat terson usual ly ca l led Peggie* 

. - She -lied about three years ifllf 

A.- ^ea, s i r . 

Q.- How old was she when she -lied? 

A..-^Ybout 95, 

q . - That was about three years aap? 

A.- Two years a p . 

0 . - Then she was born in 1806, or about t h a t ? 

A.- I think she "was, 

Q.- Where was she born? 

A.- I don ' t know where. 

Q.- t h a t has she told you? 

A.- I don ' t remember of her t e l l i n g me. 

' / . - You l ived with her a l l your l i f e ? 

A.- Yes, s i r , but i don' t remember tha t po in t? 

Q.- She l ived u n t i l two years a p ? 
Y A.- es, s i r . 

Q.- And you are unable to s t a t e where she was born? 
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Q.- How muoh Choctaw have you been tau^i t he was? 

A.- I have been t a u ^ t he V*a a full blood? 

(U* .'as he married? 

A.- He married my .grandmother and lef t her in the old country, 

Q.- What was your graiilmother's name? 

A.- Jennie Allen before she married him, 

Q.- They called her Jennie Patterson after that? 

A.- Yep, s i r . 

Q.- That was Me English name? 

A,- Yen, nir* 
Patterson 

Q.- Ih i l full blood Choctaw Lilian„was your grandfather? 

A.- Ye£, sir, that l i what I have always been teached. 

Q.- Your mother if! his daughter? 

A,- Yen, sir* 

Q.- Her name war. Morguet | 

A,~ Yes, s i r . 

Q.- Did your grandfather ever come to th is country? 

i»w I think BO« 

Q,- fitfe tlie Indians, or after tliey came? 

A.- With the Indians. 

Q*- And resided here? 

A,- *es, s i r . 

Q.- Did he lie here? 

A.- I BUppOBO he did; I don't know that ; I just suppose he did. 

Q.~ How long have you lived in the Choctaw Nation yourself? 

A.- About sixteen years. 

(,.- Did you come here with your family? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 
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•'*.- When iid yotl aiarry? 

A.—About ~rifty VAIL or e ig . t , ftoattlling l ike that ; I twg0% 

now exactly what year, but i t VM before the h o t 

,- Vh*t Ml y$ u r tatttbmrittg n<\r*&? 

A.,--J/-..MarrBt i^ *hat he i s always caliled. 

C,~ There children that youhave nanied, are h l l children by 

you? 

A.- Yes, i i r* 

.".,- You Ml* legally married, were you? 

A.- Yes, i i r« 

" \ - feat relat ion are you to Epsie Underwood? 

A,* i t are own s i s t e r s , 

.« run iiittinf 

4#* Full sinters* 

. - Y02 had the MM mother .and fa t ter? 

A.- Shi MM mother and father, 

' . .- whit was your roother1 s name? 

A.- Margaret, usually Called Pe^ae . 
her 

Q.- baft m jocst* father 'a MM? 

A.- John Patterson or Herman. 

:;.- Kh*|t wae your father 'c nm&? 

A..- Reuben Harlow. 

: . - Your M i t e l MM was Jnne Marlon? 

A.- Yer, r i r . 

Q#- What relation are you to Grawfori barlow aril Maria Colwell, 

who a n •pplionnta for enrollment aa Choctaw InU^ns be­

fore the Dawes Cornrr&Bsion in 1896? 

A.- 1 m own eir-te^a to them. 

•-10** 



V 

Q.- How Iong have you claimed citizenship in the Choctaw Nation? 

A.- About sixteen years. 

Q.- But you never did anything with i t ? 

A.- Tftia s i r . 

Q.- Did you ever make application to the Choctaw Council to be 

enrolled? 

A.- Yt*i i l r , 

;>#- Yihen lid you make thafcaoplication? 

A,- About 1891 or 2 I ^uese; the year after Ifaurtha 3eal went 

through. 

C - What relat ion are you to i-iartha Beal, who also make anpli-

cation to the Choctaw Council to be admitted by Act of 

Counci1. 

A#- • • are: own ras ters . 

0.- The Kpiii underwood, 1 o Ifl plaint iff in the cane No:̂  78, 

pending in this Court, in she related to you? 

A.- Yes, s i r , che i t a ft!star. 
(See objection Pa^e 11-1/2) 

C r o s s E x a m i n a t i o n . 

By Mr. Cornish; 

0 . - You say you don't know your age? 

A.- No, s i r , not for certain. 

Q.- About how old are you? 

A.- Between fif ty six, and e i ^ t somewhere, I don't know just 

what, 

Q.- You were born aoout the year 1845, *W* you ? 

A.- No, i t would not make Hie that old. 

Q.- About what year were you born? 

A.- X nuess about 1836 or 7, somewhere along there . 



O b j e c t i o n , 

Mr* Cornish* 

The Ifatione object to all the testimony in chief of 

thisi mtness* which does riot bear upon the essential 

issue® In t h i i ease; the contention of the Nations being 

that i t l i incumbent uoon the aoDlicants to pro?® by 

affirmative Ml conclusive evi ience tlmt they are Choctaw 

Indians, and such Choctaw Indians as would warrant the 

Court in admitting them to citizenship, and a l l evi lence 

which la*l not p to these essential points i s incompetent 

and should not be considered. The Nations also object 

to a l l evidence la th is case wMch tends to establish* by 

hear say cviienoe the blood and racial status of her ances­

tors^ i t being the view of the Nations that hear soy evidence 

is only competent to establish pflKgNt, *mi nothing 

otnor than that ; part icularly i s i t incoapent to establish 

blood slid racial status* 
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At- Yes, s i r . 

(,„- Your Mother never was an applicant for citizenship? 

' . - No, s i r , 

'".- Your rother lived unti l two years a p , ten years after 

Mrs, Beal was admitted by Council and four years after 

you and other members of the family applied 'to the 

Bawes Conniseion, and yet your mother never applied? 

A.- Uo, s i r . 

•'',- that Vtol the name of your mother's father? 

A..- Patterson, 

Q.- Bi^t Patterson? 

A.- John or Herman rat terson. 

Q.- uhy did you say He man now, when you said John in the or ig ina l? 

case ? 

A.- lhat i i the name. u e Lai a double name. 

C.- fthy 11:1 y ,u not ;^ive the double name before the Danes 

Commission; You never heard of Herman in or before that 

care ? 

A.- xes, air, board i t always. 

Q.- lb you mean to s tate that anything waa sold about Henna in 

the case before the Dawes Gommisai.n and before the United 

States Court? 

A.- Ho, idr , 

Q.- He was your mother's father? 

A.- Yes, str* 

Q.- V.hen was he born? 

A.- I don't know. 

Q.- Where was he born? 

A.- I b n ' t know. 
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r . - Where did he tide ? 
r . - I ]on' t know where he died, 

Q.- How nmny chil lren did lie have? 

A.- Leven. 

Q.- Him then:. 

A.- Betsy, Bil l , Ester, nrv Bother Margaret, John, I lon't know 

which was the oldest, Patsy or Andy. 

Q.- i l that a l l ? 

A.- 1 think that i s seven. 

Q.- i s Betsy living? 

A.- No, s i r . 

Q.~ /.tore wafl she l iving when she i ied? 

A . - w e ^ l *0XBUlt 

Q#- Did aba have a family? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- Ihere was she and her descendants l iving the las t time you 

heard of tubes? 

A.- In Se»t 'Aexas, somewhere about L County. 

(J#- l/icy never lived in th i s eou /try? 

A..- Re, s i r . 

Q.- Skiver lived in the Territory? 

A.- No, e i n 

Q.- They have no citizenship alaim pendingf 

A.- Nc r-ir, Betsy died a number of years *0>« 

Q.- I i Bill l iving? 

A.- Nc, s i r . 

Q.- Did he liave a family? 

A.- No, s i r , 

Q.- Did he ever marry? —1, ;— 



A,- No, he died a single man in the F l o r i l a War. 

Q.- Where t a s he l i v i n g when he went to F lor ida? 

A.- MississimxL or Alabama, 

Q.~ I s Ester l i v i n g ? 

4 f« No, r i r . 

Q.- Did she have a family? 

A,- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- where did she ra i se her family. 

A.-* Raia*d tlem in Jcfepc Liana County lex, 

Q.- Are her descendants 11 Ting down there now> 

A.- She has one chi ld l i v i n g somewhere. 

Q.- (feal i s your information as to where t h a t chi ld i s l i v i n g ; 

when you l a s t heard. 

A.- In tha t county. 

Q.- Then so far as you tan tha t chi ld i s l i v i n g inTexas? 

A.- Y«sf s i r . 

Q.- Vo far as youknow, i t lias no c i t i zensh ip claim? 

A.- No, s i r . 

Q.~ And never has had, so far as you know? 

A.- No, s i r . 

Q.- I s John l i v i n g ? 

A,- I don ' t know. 

Q#- Did he have a family? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- Where are the members of t h a t family l i v i n g ? 

A.- x lon ' t know. 

Q.- Where did they l ive the l a s t you heard from them? 

A.- I think i n Missouri. 

Q.~ Then, so fa r as you know, the descendants of Uncle John 



are now l iv ing in the State of Missouri? 

A.- That was the l a s t I heard. 

- I s Patsy l iving? 

- No, s i r . 

-D id she have any children? 

- One or two. 

- Where do they live? 

• They went out west. 

- &here? 

- In Texas. 

- Is she dead? 

- Yes, sir. 

- Then her descendants, no far as you know, age now living 

inthe State of ^ex&s? 

- Yes, s i r , HO far aa I know* 

- I s Andy l iving? 

- i don't know, I heard that he was dead. 

- Did he have a family? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- V.'here Was that fanally l iving when you las t heard of them? 

- In Missouri, ut> wjiere ray father lived* 

- Then, so far as you know, the descendants of Andy ^ s ^>w 

l iving |n the State of Missouri ? 

- Yes, s i r . 

- Now, when did Andy die? 

- l don't know when he lied* 

-When did you l a s t hear of him? 

- Over twenty years MM 

- Where did he l ive in Missouri, what co arty, what part icular 
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locality, when you las t heard from him? 

A.- I don't know for certain what county, i think Doniphan. 

Q.- *'hat postoffice address? 

A.- x don't know, never had any l e t t e r s from him* 

. - UtfA part of the State? 

A.- i don't know 

Q.- Was his n^me Andy Patterson? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

. - Can you ^Lve the pos toff ice address, or the exact loca­

tion where any of the descendants of Aunt Betsy l ive? 

A.- Mo, s i r , 

Q.- What about the descendants of Bi l l? 

A..- He did not have any. 

Q.- Ihfct about lister; can you-ive the names of some of the 

descendants of Ester? 

A.- No, s i r . 

\ Q.- Nhftt ^bout John. 

A.- 1 don't know. They were l iving i n Missouri, I suppose they 

are l iving there yet . 

1 e - d i r e c t # 

Mr. McPherren; 

Q.- Miat was the condition of your mother1 a mind some years 

before she died? 

A.- Very bid ana she was very hard of hearing* 

Judge Foote; 

Q.- Ihtffc was the condition of her mind unt i l she was about sixty? 

A.- lt was ?pod. I expect i t was $oo&* 

0 . - *hen .did her Bind f a i l ? 

A.- Children never notice that in uothera. 
» 
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Q.- She had a ppod rrind unt i l she was sixty? 

A.- I expect i t was alrisjrb. 

Q,- ur> unt i l that time she never told you where she was born? 

A.- She may have but I don't recollect * e r e she was b->rn. 

Witnees excused. 

— *••*** iCf ***"* 



J o e F r e e m a n 

a witness produced by the Plaint i f fs , bein~ duly sworn, t e s t i 
fied as follows, to the interrogatories propounded by 

Mr. Ifc Fherren; 
—what i s your name? 
—Joe Freeman. 
—How old are you. 
—Well, I am south ing over 81 years, Ireckon. 
--.'•'here do you l ive? 
—At Bog 31 e DeDot. 
--In the 'Choctaw Nation? 
--Yes, s i r . 
,—Where H n you born, Uncle Joe? 
,—In Mississippi. 
,- How long did" you l ive in Mississimi? 
,- I lived there unt i l I was seventeen or ei^iteen years old, 

I reckon. 
\Vhere did you pp then? 

- Cam* to the Choctaw Nation, here near Dokesville. 
--».here have you resided since that time? 

,- About in the Choctaw Nation. 
—Ever since that time? 
—Yes, sir* 
--Did you know a man by the name of John Patterson? 
—Yep, s i r . 
- In the State of Jfississinja? 
—Was he an Indian? 
—Yes, sir* 
--Yes, s i r . ' 
—Where did he l ive? 
- He lived-- I don*t know exactly where he lived; he was 

there in Mississippi; .he lived four miles on the other 
s i i e of Holly Springs , 

0 . - Did you ever see t h i s same John Patterson in the Choctaw 
Nation? 

A.- He was here when I moved from Mississipm; I saw Mm 
different places there and when I came"* here I saw him here 
assain. 

Q.- Do you know whether or not th is John Patterson was married? 
A.—Well, he was married; I never did see his wife, but I 

am satisfied he was married. 
,—Ever see a woman named Mar&KTtt Patterson or PeT^de Pat­

terson, In th i s country? 
A.--Yes, s i r , see'd one by the name of Peg-£e. Patter son. 
q.—where did you see her? 
A.--Down here at B o ^ e . 
Q.—Bô sgLe Deix>t? 
A.- Yes, s i r . 
Q.- When did you see her here? 
A.- I t has been some ftlj&t or ton years a&>9 I reckon. • 
0.—Was she an old woman or a young woman wnen you saw her* 
KM—A very old woman. 
Q.- Whose daa^iter was she, i f you know? 

file:///Vhere


A.--I b n ' t know who her father was; I got ray house burned up 
and I went over there; nhe wan at underwood1 B; I saw her** 
and <pt to talking to her and she t o l l LB then - - -Under-
woods .''"ave me some things and nearly every body iave m 
BOOS tilings, 

Mr. Cornish; 
Ie object and ask that i t not p in the record, 

Mr« McPherren; 
Q#» How Ion;; a;p was th is? 
A.- Ei-}:t or ten years a p , 

Mr. Cornish; 
This same woman lived until turo years anp and her t e s t i ­
mony has not appeared in thin case. 

Mr. McPherren; 
Q.- -as she Married; PwggLe; the woman who said her name was 

Patterson? 
A.- I don't think Ait was at that time; but I was not very 

much acquainted with her, 
Q.—Had she previously been married? 
A,—I think she had; but I am not certain. 
Q,- The was l iving with tos. Underwood at -that time? 
A.- Yes, s i r . 
..- Dla rvrie look to be a Choctaw woman? 

A.—Looked like ab ut a half breed. 
i . - Row much Choctaw blood lid John Patterson have? 
A.- Ke looked like a full blood to me. 
Q.- Do you know his Choctaw namr f 
A,-- They called Mm Moontubbe. 
Q.- You kno7' when hi come from the old Nation in Mississinni 

to the nrefjafrt Choctaw Nation? 
A.- I real]y ion ' t , I don't know when he lef t Mississippi; 

I think he lef t there before I did; a long time before 
I cane out here 1 had missed him. 

Q.- How old did you say you were? 
A.- Over eijbty, I think. A, 

.—Know how nnch over eintrty? 
A,- I always call myself SSL from what my i as ter told me; 

he had a son about as old as I was and he told me how 
old he was: he had his BtfS in a book; that would make 
me ei hty two i f that i s correct . 

"'..—HOT ola wers you when you came out here? 
A,- About thir teen or fourteen. 

. - the; you came to the Choctaw Nation? 
A.- Yes, s i r . 
C.- Who did you come with? 
A.- Bri t l l l l i s . 
Q.~ You saw th is man John Patterson out here? 
A.- Yes, s i r . 
Q.- This saw John Patterson? 
A.- The same IEOTK man. 



C r o s s E x a m i n a t i o n . 

. Cornish; 

Q.— How sany cases have you tes t i f ied in before th i s Court, 

Jnole Joe? 

kmp (fail makes the third one, I think• 

- Kef* have you been since you were here the other day? 

- Down hor.e. 

- uhzn l id you leave bftni to come up here? 

- Ycrrtcr lay morning. 

- Where do you l ive? 

- Down about Btggf« now. 

- Who f i r s t talked to you about thif case? 

- Talked to me, ho*:""? 

- That i s what I mean to say; who f i r s t talked to you about 

this cane* 

- About corning here ? 

- No about John Patterson; who f i r s t talted to you about thii 

case*3 

-Mrs . Undergo 1. 

- femf 
- About a week sjap. 

i 

- You ere never talked to about it before' 

- No, sir, never did. 

- You know these oeo?)le a -pod many yearn? 

- ies, sir. 

- You knew ilrs. Underwood a $>od many years asp, when she 

p v i you these things? 

- Sea, s i r . 
Q - You never talked to her anything about the oase then? 



A.- She did not know that I knew then. 

, - The f i r s t time you were talked to about this case "as a l i t -

t i e over a week igp? 

A.- *es, s i r . 

#- You lived about Holly Springs in Mississippi? 

A.- ^es, s i r , 

s . - Never lived any ple.ee else in Mississippi! 

i t - Ho, s i r . 

0 , - You were brou^it from there to th i s Nation? 

A.- YOB, sir* 

Q,- Now you were about thir teen or fourteen years old "hen 

you came to th is Nation? 

A,- I think I was* 

0 . - How lon~; before the far? 

A.- A lottg time. Just l iks i t was the other day; I cannot say 

just how lone*. 

Q.- Fix i t as nenr as you can* 

i»* I t i s 0MBS work. 

Q.- I want your best information and best jui-jrent. 

•'•-.- My best Jttdgpaat, t i s just l ike tho other dry; i told 

you i don't knew; I ml Jit say i t was fifteen or twenty years. 

Q t- Fifteen or twenty years before the IsT« 

A.- I t mirrt hsve been; I never keen no time; I si aptting old 

Mad very forgetful, 

. - Fifteen or twenty years before the .Var; that i s your 

best juiqrent? 

.*.- Yes, sir* 

Q.- You went to ^okesville? 

A.- Yes, s i r . —34« 
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Q.- Where in the Choctaw Nation was the man named John Pat te rson? 

A,- in the Choctaw Nation the other side of Holly S p r i n g 

\9- L mean in t h i s Nation. 

A.- up about Spencer Aoamdemy. 

C.- How far la tha t from Dokesville? 

A.-About ten a l l o t * 

Q.- How nan? t i n t s did you nee Mm? 

A.- '/cry frequently; of course I could not g tv t you Hie t imes; 

never paid any a t t en t ion when l did nee him. Only knew 

his name-

Q.- Rom old a man was he when you saw Mm? 

A.- Very old. 

Q.- How old? 

A.- i could not t o l l you; he looked l ike a very old man. 

Q.~ 1'ver iOO him any where expect Spencer Academy? 

A.- SaW bin about Dokesville* 

Q.- Where did he live'? 

A.- Up about hoencer Academy. 

Q.- Bow io you know he did? 

A.- Gaw him come from the re -

Q.~ Did he Iiave a family? 

A.- i «UCRS he had, buo i don ' t know rrnch about thorn. 

. - You lon ' t know anything about the family? 

A.- No, i i r , not much; i know he had a son. 

Q. - Did you ever gp to h i s home? 

A.- No, s i r , I have been by t h e r e . I know he had a son, Jim 

Patterson they cal led him; he k i l l e d a fellow that was 

named Tom Hayes; a Choctaw man. 

Q.- When did tha t k i l l i n g occur? 

A.- That was long before the War. 
i 



. - You jor;timed to l ive there unt i l a few years »#p? 

A.- xes, s i r . 

Q.- >: tt became of this man John Patterson? 

A.- I don't know. 

Q.- Tou kept on l iv ing there? 

A,- *••• s i r . 'Jixm lie lef t •• don't know where he went. 
• I think he went to the Chickasaw Nation, but I don't know. 

Q.- that did he do for a l i?ingf 

A,- I don't know tha t . 

Q.- Via? he aboat these horse races? 

ft** I len't remember Biffing him, if he ever followed horse 

races I lon' t remember* 

Q.- Rfca he a vhlftky drinker? 

Ju- Fee, eir* 

Q.- fae he a fi llerf 

A.- Ho, sir, never a± beard of him being a rfciime i id l e r . 

. , - fan lie a horse racer? 

A.- I don't know; he mijht have been but I don t know", 

0 . - then V&I the f i r s t time you ever snw th is nan John Pat­

terson? 

i*~ I b n ' t remember 

Q.~ Then you are unable to state the hi r e t time you saw h im? 

A.- I know I eaW him a gpod many iimc.3; the f i r s t time was 

in Mississippi, 

Q.- I mean there about Dokcsville* 

A.- He ran with ^ohia end several men, horn Hayea, a l l of 

them are full blood* and several Chickasaws; of course 

I coulI not cal l the names; I could not do i t i f I was 

a young man; ^ knew the names of pret ty iruehWery*-down 

there, but to ca l l the i r aires I Oduld not do i t ; I cannot 
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call the DtfttM of the people there in the settlement There 

I live O0V, 

C.- You ka&t a l l of the Ghoctav/s that live in the Nation, now? 

A 

Q 

i 

A 

-i*ost of them. 

- .hat people are l iving now that • ere l iving around there 

then, 

- There ore not many of them l iving. 

- ..as Peter katubbe living there; did you kxmm him? 

- * M , r i r . 

• Hd he blow '(MB man? 

- 1 gAftftfl he did. 

- You luiew Calvin Perry? 

- Yes, s i r , 

- He knew you t 

-Of course he did. 

- Y,hat other old Choeta s are l iv ing that lived there 

and knew th is man? 

- I don't maember, 

- You knew old man Bill Spring, who lives down there at 

Goodland? 

- V Bir^ 
- Did he live there in that country? 

i don't think he did, 

- Thtst are two, who else? 

- I oould not cal l the i r M t l « 

- Where did Peter Jatubbe live in these days? 

- I d;n*t know exactly; he did l ive down here about Dokes-

v i l l e , then he moved up here about Old Boppy. 

— < , / — 



Q.- I am talking about this time twenty years before the 

I-ar. Bid he live about Dokesville? 

A.- I erpect he did. , 

A.- I expect he did* 

Q.- -here lid Calvin Perry live? 

A.- He lived d&m below Dokesville. 

Q.- Ho* far? 

A.- About tea or twelve niloa nay be, and may be not so far . 

I t hafl been co long* 

Q.- Did you ever see Peter Metubbe around th is man Patterson? 

A.- 1 don't think 1 have , 

Q.- Did you ever see Calvin Perry with him? 

A.- I don't think I have* 

Q.- What Indians did you ever see with him? 

;,.- I never paid any attention] of course i know a great num­

ber of In limn and may have pee them with him* 

Q.- Give the names of a l l the Indiana you ever caw around this 

nan John Patterson? 

A.- i canaot do that if you give me t in t here unt i l morning. 

, - You are unable to mention a single Indian you ever caw 

with him? 

A.- Tboiaaa Kayes and othere* 

,~ iou nay you saw th is man Jolm Patterson in Mississippi f 

i v.."* * w 5 i ». ̂ -i-» 

Q.- fihere ? 

At- At Holly Spring* 

Q.- How far did Jom Patterson live from you? 
A.- I don't know, but knorcd he lived in the neighborhood. 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 
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- Ih«3 you are unable to state where he lived in Mississippi? 

- I am unable to state, I don't know. 

- Ron many t lnss did y:>u see Mm there? 

- I don't know] I never paid ^zvf attention* 

- Hfao lid you see h i s with there? 

- Lot? of psople, 

- Are you able to dve the tmm of a single person you saw 

r i t h John Patterson in Mississippi • 

- I could not exactly, because 1 never did think about i t . 

- bat ' e re the names of the members of his family? 

- 1 Jori.'t know t h a t , 

- Do you knew the nam of Ms wife? 

- I do ot know thatj I told you I did not know her at f i r s t . 

- (ban you f i r s t came before t h i s Court, who did you tes t i fy 

for? 

- US memory i s not very long; of course, 1 kner at the time. 

- Si i t about tiiis Choctaw Billy business* 

- Tts, r i r . 

- ho was Chootaw Billy kin to? 

- I told you at that t ine . 

- 1 want you 'to t e l l m now? 

Mr. JcPherren-

1 object. 

Mr. Cornish; 
(;.- V»ho was Choctaw Billy kin to? 

JU« I co J Id not ca l l the tmm I I an feiy iflfcll I toli. you the 

other day, but I f o r ^ t i t now. 

0 . - Who else did you tes t i fy about dowi in that country? 

A.- Well, of course, 1 as forgetful, that i s very true; of 

course, i f you will ri-ve BS t i«§, i t will take right smart, 



i f you sg&t rm on one cape m l gpt me tanked up, I can not 

'tall about any others; I asoscxfeoct M B here to teetify to 

the truth and what x know. Every oane I con» here in I 

am for/.getful of the names', 

.—But you would know them, i f called over to ydu? 

|+« ^es, air , of course, but 1 would forest Borae of them. 

I . - You nay you knew the man you came here to tes t i fy for? 

A.- Of oourae I did, but I have fora>tten Me nmm* Now, I 

would not come her® to tes t i fy to something I did not know, 

You see, of course, I am grt&lng o i l , i am very forgetful 

at the best; these men asked rne Mr. Underbade nmmt and 

I could not t o l l them, i t i s a very oomrron narae, but 

when I p 4 old I an for;^' t fu l . 

fitness excused* 

Mr. McPherren. 

i have i liiotion I ?esire to f i l e ; vt have some wit-

nosses we exnected here today, but they did not (pt here* 

We can get them hero in a week; 1 have f i l e I a notion 

that < e be given unti l the 21et. to g i t them here, with 

the un&err landing that we will gpt them here before i f 

possible. 
The Court; 

Alri^it , gipt than here by the 21st. , before,if possible, 

as we have several cases set for that day and wish to 

|ourn on tha t day* 



Dec. 12, 1903. 

Before Judges 7/eaver and Footer 

Mr. McPherren, 

If the Court please, th is case was continued unti l the 

21st, for the Plaint i f f to fck ^et the testimony of some 

witnesses; we have some witnesses here now and we nmld 

l ike to introduce them* 

Jtldga Weaver; 

You may proceed-

D U K E I A R L 0 I , 

a witness nroduccd on behalf of the Plaint iffs , being 
duly.Bworn tes t i f ied,a« follow in answer to the in te r -
r e c t o r i e s propounded by Mr. JlePLerren; 

Q.- What i s your naMff 

A.- &rtc fiarlow. 

Q.- How old are ycu? 

A.- I will be 78 years old the 2nd day of January. 

C - that i s your Postoffice address? 

A.- Denison, texai* 

Q.- Do you know Jane liarrs? 

A.—T«ft, s i r . 

Q.- lhat relation are you to her? 

A.- l an a half brother. 

Q.- Did you all have the game father or the same mother? 

A.- Tare fat1er, but different ,:other; her mother was my 

eto;") mother* 

Q.- V/hat was her mother's nane before she married your father? 

A.- Margaret Patterson was her proper name; they called her 

jpeg i e for short. 
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Q.- What was your father*s name? 

A,- Rueben Marlow. 

C#- Did you ever hear what Mar^UrtVll Pa t t e r son ' s f a t h e r ' s 

name was? 

A.— Uf understanding, her f a the r ' s name was John Pa t t e r son , 

Q.- hver pee him? 

A.- Never seen Mm. 

C - Did Mar-are 1, Pat terson and your f a the r l ive together as 

husband and ttft* 

A,- Yes, s i r . 

C - They were l ega l ly married, were they? 

A.- Yes, s i r , I suppose no; I am s a t i s f i e d they -ere l ega l ly 

married* 

C . - Did they have any chi ldren? 

A.—Yes, s i r . By her? 

:;.—Yes, your fa ther .and ^argaret Pa t te rsoh* 

A.- Yes, s i r , she had chi ldren. / 

Q.- How many? 

A.- Well, I wi l l have to count them, I reckon, 

Q.- Name them. 

A.- The o l i e n t one Wag i a r tha , she married a fellow named 

Beal; the next oldest one i s dead; ca l led him John Allen. 

The next oldest one was i believe, he i s dead too, thejl 

ca l l ed him B i l l y . The riert o ldes t one was Jane Marrs 

tha t i s he re . 

A.- The appl icant? 

C—Yes, s i r . The next Cynthia Ann Marlow, married a fellow 

named Wade. They are both dead. 

A.- Give the nex t . 
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A.- I don't know whether I can exactly "oeate them apart or 

not 

. - was one named Crawford? 

. - He was next youngest to Bil ly. 

Q.- Just name them. 

A.--One wan named Bertie, Missouri, Jasper, Maria; tha t i s 

a l l . That i s a l l that i s l iving; they art not a l l l iving. 

.—where does Mfcria l ive? 

A.- The l ives here by— this l i t t l e mining torn, Lehi;;}i. 

Q.—Is she married? 

A.- Che Yam mxrti I but her husband i s dead. 

Q.- Ih*t i s her nam now? 

A.- Codwell. 

Q.- Where teov Carwford Mario* l ive? 

A.- Rig$it ol6s« to Labial* 

Q.- Is he a brother end i s Maria Colwell a s i s te r to Jane 

Marrs? 

A.- Yes, s i r ^ 

Q.- You are a half brother? 

A.- *est s i r , I im only a half brother* 
. * 

Mr. Cornish; 

The Choctaw and Chickasaw %tions wish to state m ob­

jection to the testimony of th is witness as to the pedigree 

of Jane Marrs, upon the ground that he has not show iiisi-

OOlf to be qualified so that he can tes t i fy as to pedigree. 

3 3 ^ 



C r o c s E x a m i n a t i o n . 

Q. You say you are a half brother of t i l s Jane .larrs? 

A,- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- iour father married &ar aret Psttorson 

A,- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- v.as ^ r ritct Patterson your mother? 

A,- No, s i r , 

Q«- iho wis your raother? 

. . - % tiiother was Susan Ward. 

(;«,- Your mother was Susan Hirt tod your father was who\..* 

A.- barlow. 

Q*« what was fall g t t m na.e? 

A.- Reuben barlow. 

. - Them you are x*ot related by blood to Jane M,arrs ^nd 

others in th i s case? 

A.- 1es, s i r , from ray father* 

Q,- What wis Jane ^iarrr1 mother's nan»? 

A.- Ifefrgpmt Patterson barlow, after she married. 

' 'Q.- How db you know that] when did you f i r s t see t h i s **orfipret 

Patter eon, how old were you? 

A.- I suppose I waa» I can hardly locate the a$e exactly, 

but SMi six or seven years .o ld . 

Q„~ Wbm your fatlier married her? 

A,- ^esf sir* 

• ?u- HnWPf were they married? 

A,- That I cannot t e l l , I was not there, did not see i t* 

I „- Where were they f i r s t l iving when you f i r s t knew them. 

A«- When I was f i r s t carried to them they were l iving i n 
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the tdgi of Eennessee, when I was f i r s t taken to the . 

Q.- Near what place? 

A.- There was not *uoh of a t^ace there I cannot t e l l you 

what place was nearest. The nearest pltuM V&a twenty five 

miles. 

Q.- What was your father*i postoffice address? 

A.- While he lived there? 

Q.~ Yes s i r . 

A.- He did not l ive there long unt i l he moved to Alabama. He 

had no address there that 1 know of \ 

().- He lived twenty five idles from what torn in the State 

of Tennessee? 

A.- I cannot think, i t i s the county neat of that county, I 

camiot think of the name of i t . 

Q.- that year was i t when he lived in Tennessee? 

A.- I cannot t e l l you» 

',.- You know what county i t was? 

A#- No, I lon ' t know what county i t was, you see he only stayed 

there two or three months* About four or five months. 

Q.* But i t was, according to your statement, seventy one years 

ago, •bill he married M*rgftr*t Patterson in the State of 

Tennessee? 

A.- ItmLggfe have been. 

.—You are seventy t ight years old? 

A.- i es , s i r . 

Q.- That would make i t seventy one or two years ago; how long 

had they been married when you went to live with them in 

the State of Tennessee? 

A.- I don't know exactly how Logfcft I was l iving with my grand-
. . .OK 



father, they might have been married two or three months; 

nay be leas, when I was carried to them, and then they 

did not stay there but a little while and went into Alabama. 

Q.- Did they have any children? 

A.- No, air, 

•:.- How long before the f i r s t child was born? 

A.- I cannot exactly t e l l you. 

. - Where did they move to in the State of Alabama? 

A.- In Jackson County. 

. - How long did they l ive there? 

A.- I don't know how long they did l ive there, hardly. 

Q.- Near what town did they live in the State of Alabama? 

A.- Boliver. 

C.- Alabama? 

A.- **i »lr* 

Q.- How clone to that town? 

!>•«• About six or seven r i l e s . 

Q,~ In what direction? 

A.- i do/j't know exactly, I t&ink i t was north, part ly north 

any way, 

Q.- Your father did not olairn to be an Indian there? 

A.- No, s i r . 

(.;.- He was a white man? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.~ Hi lived as a ci t izen in the States of Tennessee and Alabama? 

A.- *•«« s i r . He wan a ci t izen. 

Q.- Where did they move to frou Boliver, Alabama? 

A.- To Missouri. 

:,.- What Dart of Missouri. 
St . 



. - Vvlrvt pa r t of Missouri? 

A.- Well, tbey moved in to Wright County Missouri, then moved 
• back into Madison County, near Iron" Mountain. 

Q.- How long did they l i ve t he re? 
ye ar s . 

A.- About 10 or 20 dPWPIMBPtlBnW^ I don' t remember 

exactly* 

. - .'.here abouts did they l i v e i n Madison County? 

A.- About i t s or ei/^ht t i l e s from Fredericktown, the county s e a t . 

. - now long Las th i s %T(pr*t Pat terson oeen dead? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- How long has she been dead* 

A,- Well, I reckon she has beenidead one o r two years . 

0 . - where did she die? 

A.- Here in the Nation; down here at Lehi$i . 

Q„» Hdw, lid your fa ther move from the State of Missouri, 

a f ter l i v i n g there about twenty years? 

A.- Yes, s i r , he. moved to Texas. 

0 . - Your s tep mother was s t i l l with you a t t ha t time? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

(}.- here did they locate in Texas? 

I . - Located down here in Boric am. 

Q.- What year was i t when they moved to the State of Texas? 

A.- I don ' t know tha t e i t h e r . 

Q.- HOT? many years a p ? 

A.- I t mi^i t have been I b r t y seven or e ight , somewhere along 

there I don ' t remember. 

Q.- What T)art of '̂ -exas did your fa ther move t o ? 
County-

A*- In Fannin Texas, not f a r from Boiihara, 

" . - Bid he buy land there and have a home? 

A,- en, s i r* 

- - O f * -



Q.- Y*Mch direction from Bonhain? 

A.- I t Dig a l i t t l e north west, 

CU~ About how mmij miles? 

A.- About ei-^ht miles, 

v . - Did your step irother. Margaret Patterson, live there mth 

your father unt i l what time? 

A.- Eho l iv td with him there unt i l he tiled? 

K*- %«t year '"lid your father die? 

A#- 'Well, I don't remember what year he "lied in ; i t was BOEe-

where along .about 1870, 1 reckon. 

Q.~ How long af ter that before she raoved away from there? 

A.- Well, she l e f t there about two years after; a year rnny be two, 

0#~ Bbe le f t there about seventy two or three then? 

A«~ *e»| s i r , rJie lef t there about 1871 or 2# 

"•.- ..here 'lid ski cows t o . 

A.- She went to the Hation* 

Qt* ii.hat part of the Nation? 

A.- She wmt up liere hj t lds l i t t l e place, I have spoken of, 

Lehigh. 

Q#- Had r°he married ajain? 

A.- Mo, s i r . 

Q#- uhe irioved to the Mation near LeM^i? 

A.- ¥ee, s i r . 

.,- That in about a l l you know of her aomraBiite up to th i s time? 

A.- ¥©0f eir« 

C.- Lhe stayed there until she lied? 

'\#- Ho, rdr, she came back to my house and stayed a ifoile md 

then she went back, 

Q.- You said here that her father was John Patterson ** 



A.- Yes, s i r , 

• „,- Do you a t ate tha t from personal knowlel-e or fafc&F n y? 

k+~ No, s i r , I s ta ted tha t was ay understanding; that i s the 

way 1 • said i t . 

%- You s t a t e t h a t from hear say'? 

i\.- Sfeg, a i r . 

Q.- Did you k .0 i te r --71 r e t P a t t e r son* s mother? 

A.- ffa, a i r . 

Q t- .hat was her name? 

it* Jane . 

Q.- Y'here did you know her* 

A.- There i n Alabma. 

Q.- The l ived in Alabama? 

A.- Che l ived there , yen s i r . 

Q#- Did you know her f a the r? 

A.- Tre old latfPa fa ther? 

0 . - No, ;i,ar"^ret Pat terROH'S fa ther? 

A,- llo, s i r . 

,';.,- ..hero was he a t the time you were acquainted with the 

mother. 

A.- I do not know where he was; I cannot t e l l you vnere he 

v**# any more than hear say. 

Q.- You knew the mother there of th i s i^hr^aret Patterson, but 

you did not know }wr f a t h ^ I 

A.- 1 kn#* i a r m r e t . 

Q,~ 3D4d you ever know her ^nd rao the r in Alabama? 

A.- .'y s tep mother's gpindtotbtrf 

C - Yes. 

A.- No, s i r . 

• 3 9 -



Q.- Did you know her grandfather? 

A#~ Mo, s i r , 

L:\- Did you know BXIJ of her brothers and, rdcters in Alabama? 

k§t % B^ej mother1 a brothers mad s i s te r s? 

A.- *es. 

| f « i knowed them a l l , 

' : , - How mgoyf 

• . - Bi l l t John* lndy« 

" . - toy of them s t i l l l iving? 

A,- ;v.j,sir, Bi l l died & long while & a. I heard one of the 

©thens mi lied, fesy T"'ere t* -Si^souri, I tax't know #iioh 

one, wsQjf be both for a l l I know. The ~drls were Betsy, 

in-ter and Patsy, and iay giep nother. that te abo A the 

nuitioer of the children* 

Q,- Where were they l iv i ig «bm you las t 'hear of them? 

A.- la Alabana mid part in Missouri. 

Judge Footc; 

" .- Yon oay yon wont over from Teneeeee to Alabama, Jackson 

County? 

' . - ^esf s i r . 

Q#- You eay your father Harried in Tennessee and went to 

Alabama? 

!,»<*'fe«g sir* 

•";;.- D&a'i you know that there is no place called Bo l iver in 

Jackson County, fclabMtf 

A.- A'es, eir, there i s a place there. 

.,.- re you not thinking about Boliver, Teim. 

i t * Mo, s i r , I Saaow there i s a Boliver in Alabama, I t l i es 
in below Butler Creek, not far from the Tennessee f&ver. 

--40--
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109. Rioh, Brasheors, £. 

A,--He was a Choctaw, 

Q.— then did jomoum to the Indian Ter r i to iy? 

A.—In ' 3 1 . 

Q.— In 1831? 

A*<»<»Tttf s i r . 

i;.— JJO l i d you come with? 

A.—Brashears* 

Q.—With Von Brashears? 

A.--Yes, a i r . 

Q.— Where did he s top? 

A •—At Dokervil le. 

0.—'.«here have you been liflfljg s ince ' 4 1 . 

A.—Me? 

Q.—Yes. 

A.—Firs t one place and then another i n the Te r r i t o ry . 

Q.—You mean in t h i s t e r r i t o r y and Nation* 

A.--Yes, s i r , never did l ive anyplace •!•** 

Q.— Are you a Choctaw or Chickasaw Freedman? 

A.—I am a Chickasaw now, they sold me to the Chick as aite jus t 

a few years before the war and I m a Chickasaw Freetown, 

but mf old master was a Choctaw. 

.—Did you know a mm named John Pat terson i n the Stat© of 

Mississippi*** 

A.--Yen, s i r , I knowed him. 

•';.—-here 'lid you know fairaf 

A.—I eeea him there in .Jissisoittai and when we came to 

th ia country afyun, 

Q.—Did John Pat temon come to t h i s country? 

A.—Yes, s i r , 

Q.—Where did he l i v e ? 
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C r o t E x a m i n i t i o n 

By Mr, &msfie>] i | 

Q.—'-hat year n n you. born? 

I , - in 1321. 

Q-- Sit what point in Mississippi? 

- i l absm iffl ^here 1 ?Tas born, on the Ton Bigbie Riter« 

- ii r it touaf 

- That i t roLietrii.iT I i on ' t knoWj there war*. a littles torn, 

I ion ' t know whether i t was a l i t t l e one or a Wg one, 

$&ll«d Utixs 7: ton that Wm* the cilos^it 9ni I ever heard of# 

Q.- Tou re re born in 1821? 

A.- ->-, a i r , 

(';,- You ^crs born a slave? 

A.- T©«, ? i r . 

Q.~ Ih&t was your master1?; nans? 

A.- Von Braehesrs* 

o,. - -..ar. he a white 

A.- Ho, c i r . He was a quarter Choctgw. 

Q,- Did he live near this l i t t l e torn in .CHoawa, what 

watt he doing! 

A.- He w&« l iving there. 

" . - ffaa h« a fanner? 

A.- YCB, r i r , Fs r or and whisky drinker. 

h , - Did he owa com© laftd there? 

A. - l c s, s i r . He o 'cne i a ffcittB the re „ 

[»* low long did you l ive there before you MWfti to Mis­

sissippi? 

A,- I was about seven or eight years of age» 

—46— 



Q,~ Where did you m in the State of Mississippi? 

A.- On the Yazoo Riyert 

Q,- a here aiaâ acxx. abojttsj what point? 

A.- A. place there end led Horse Shoe Bend; some called i t 

Honey Inland* 0 ll?«fd fig$it in there. 

Q.~ «hat was your master doing? 

A,- Farming 

Q.- Did he buy the f s » ? 

A.- I ion' t ha©* Aether he boti-~ht i t or whether i t was ^Lwen 

to hi St but he sold i t to a man named Davis* Wiley Davie. 

Q„* hheii l id he }eave there? 

A.* la 1830 

Q,- Kh&t tine in 1630? 

A.- Some tine In the F i l l he carr:e to Li t t le hock and laid by 

- until'summer and then cane to Dofcesville. 

Q.- HKfao vmm with you? 

A.- Fulsoi.:;s, liar line., isCojSi Vincent?; I oould not think of 

one third of them, 

Q.- You knew Join Patterson in the ft ate of ^i^ainsippi? 

A.- ?««, s i r . 

C.,- How, Fhere «bouta in the State of Mississippi did you 

know t r i e JoT 1 Pattersonf 

|*# There was a 'Place there called Brack Creek, close to a 

l i t t l e town narked hankin, 

Q*- How old Was John Patterson then? 

A.- That I cannot t e l l you. 

Q#- A $r©wn man? 

A.~ Yes, s i r , 

C.- How old ^as he? 



k 

>
 

M
 

§•
 

n • C
+

 

P*
?"

* 
B

 
O

 n * 

1 gS
 

O
 4 &
 

p»
 

B
 

C
&

 

a o I "
0 

c*
- gf
 

<&
 

*<
; 

ft ^ 5 O C
* 

M
 

f»
2.

 

a
 

to* 0
 

ff m
 

-p
. s P

u.
 

i i
 

ra
 

it* a> t_
4 

O
 a
. 1 a • 

a»
 

i *—
• 

a o
 c M p
. 

13
 

O
 c+
 

h-
»
 

o C
 

• 
* 

81
 

B
 1 P
* 

S3
* 

£ <
 

O
 

O
 § B
* 

o § B r Q
 

»<
 

I 

i—
,~

; 

© 1 &
 

^ fg
| 

K
w

i 

8 8 fc> b 

ft! i H
H

 

Q
 

O
 f feM
 0U

 
M

 o c+
 

03
 

B «<
 

S
i 

p B
 g#
. 

* 
. g4 

$
 i i 3 M
 

CD
 I 9 B

 c*
-

H
« 

t:
: 

• * 

O
 

&
 

p»
>

 
N

 

Pr CD
 

*?
 •

 

m
 

a m
 

m
 

•J
 

!~
J

. kt
 

fr
 

tr
 

1 •«$
 1"
 

B
 a*
 

p
«
 

••
o

 

<
-,

 
c&

 
3
 

3 H
» 

d&
 

ga
 

pi c
* 

g
* 

a
 4
 

fl O
 ts
 

' »
-i

J 

**
| 

B
 N
 

J3
 

B
 

«••
**

 

B
 

M
 

M
 | A p
. 

•—
i 

a a tr
 

a a
 1 a. 

&
 i ^4
 

o i ̂  ra
 

c*
-

m
 

c
^ 

B
 9 CO

 
3 St

 
£

t g*
 

1 
, 

&
 § c
^ 

M
« 

&
* 

p c+
 

;<
 

O
 

£3
 a e
* 

a O
 

,o
 

0
 p.
 

S3
 

c*
~

 

a a 

fc
s>

 

1 M
 

Q
 

O
 

P
 

H
* 

p
. 

a o
 

c+
-

S
 

H
-*

 

O
 @
 

• 

^D
 

i m
 

o f|
 

M
 i q c+

-
H

* g m N
i 

>
. ! C
Q

 
O

 
ĉ
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f . -Don ' t you know that they came horse oarftr 

A,- Yes, par, that in the way the Indians traveled, 

•,.- You n&yer were at the ho®© of Jono xattorson? 

A.- No, ni i \ 

',;.- You never saw Mm and Ms wife there? 

A.- 8»i Bir. 

Q.- Ifei did you find out what her name was? 

A.- 1 heard John Patterson oaLl her nanc? 

Q#« Uhlle fc -c y were there on these drunken sprees? 

A.- fo t e l l the t ruth that in the way I learned ray k i ss ' s 

irnm; did not know i t until i heard nov,® one eel] i t . 

•''.- Se« loiifT did you live there? 

km* I was seven or ei^fit years old when I l e f t Aiabaaia and 

care 'bo i i issiseiooi . 

Q.- You were ooru in 1821 and le f t litississippi in 1830? 

A.- i v •.;. i von or el :nt yvnrs eld *he& se le f t Alabama and 

coii'n "to ^ns tuss iau , 

Q.- foa know the year you were born in? 

i . - 1 3 3 . 

C - Y. w the year you l o i t j&ississipai was 1830? 

A.- Tee, sir« 

Q„- Hew Ion . after you lef t Useieeipfii before you saw John 

Patterson and Jennie, his l i f e . 

A,- Never neen her after, but seen him, 

C-«- Where did you afterwards nee him? 

A.- There in Mississippi. 

:",.- I mean after you ,spt out here? 

A.- At Dokesville. 

(;.- hint year was that? 



A,- 1831. In CTf«e here from Mt&alsaippi an! }.« oame with ue. 

I w.̂ s t,)ld that ^e were the f i r s t ChootaPa that er\i grated 

to th is country; I mm told that , 

&.- Art ymi fcaati fyin.3 from what you know? 

A.- I war, told t h i s . 

Q.- Jr.].. ;-:. terror .-rmc; nl ing with yon? 

A.- Xft», air« 

Q.- IB there ari Indian l iving at ttdi ti.ee that kilfw the 

John Pattaraan that aama along aitfa you? 

A.- 1 don't know* 

C - Ih&t did you say were tha namesof the children of John 

Patiereon ? 

A.- I only knaa >f ona,tfaat vaa rc.^-ie, I v n*1 3 not recol­

lect her name if I had not seen her in Texas. 

*';.- fan H i not recollect ariythiri£ runut ir r until you saw 

her in $axaaf 

A.- *es, r i r . 

Q.~ Riat paar w>r tha t? 

A.- Juet e ay, la before the War, 

Q.- Sow, ) yr: rnnriy children lid Jo- n Patiarao hate rhen you 

f i r s t knew hin inthe Stata of MipsisBi'^i. 

A.- I carrot t e l l you, baoani e I dbn*t know. 

Q.- How irany girla and hoT? iuany boy?.? 

U- I could not t e l l yiu. 

Q.- You don't know the i r names. 

A.- I knew lie had several children; the names i don't know. 

Q.- Kow do you k.,ow he had several children? 

A.- I saw thaflP 

Q.- Where. 

http://ti.ee


A.~ tm khm oo e with t h e i r iroiher to where we l ived, 

Q#- . 8.that i t your n a a t e r ' e : 

A#- lest s i r , they came there once in a ifail®, 

Q#~ You learned t h e i r naflieg nt your mas te r ' s ? 

A,- 1 l id not learn the i r names. 

Q.- How Ud U ey o n e the re? 

A.- They sMsfc have come or|horse beak , Th«y did not r ide in K 
ou':a, 

Q#- "ii'ie only place yoia ggtf the children was vThen i"'ey would 

cone there to your master 1 ! e l ace? 

a . - * •* c m . 

0 . - W.d jfOU -ee the ehxldreri of Join ^ t t e r ^ n ' %t i l l in 

Mi ssis&iprd ? 

i«* ier. l a i r . 

C - B &t feds 1 af looVi i * chi ldren? 

fc.- Bfclf c r e e l s . 

hh- HOT; o l i aere tbtjrf 

A.- 0, rqf aa.raieF.ra 1 could not t e l l you t h a t , 

( a - You can t e l l about t h e i r ayes? 

A.- Ho, par, 

Q;#- -..ere Lucy gLrli or baynf 

A.- lor.e gjlrlgg ae well ae I recohlnet; but I cannot t e l l 

you how raariy bpyi c r ho* many s$riLa# 

(J,- Wl en wae uh.e l a s t t i ae you a W U:iz roaa^ rind theaft 

children a t yaw? . r a t e r* a pl*o*f 

A.- 1 could not t e l l youtl sAf 

( , - E at ^ou l i be in 1830, If you l i v e ! there in 1830? 

,%- 1 wm mt t e l l how mmy children. 

. - You cannot yive 8$y idea as to how old they ware a t t h a t 

tine? 

--51 — 
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l#- Yes, a i r . 

Q.- Cm, you mm igay &f tb§*i old Indiana that knew John 

Patterson at Dofcepville? 

kt-j ATO, a i r . 

C.- Bjo* long did he stay at Dokesville before lie went back? 

A.- I l on ' t know. 

| 0 * Beveiial years? 

• .- iCeii a i r . 

Q.- How do you know he went back? 

•".,- I heir.I i t . 

J.* m i he t e l l you? 

;'..- He, cir, heard hi; talking to other men, 

Q#- Do you know he vant back? 

/ t i ilc must have gpg)6« 

k„- koT:; 1 i:. I he §tay? 

ft -. T - l . - ' i ' + I • into 

• %~ -.'.he J lid you next see him? 

JUj* I Icn't km% i cannot t e l l you that , 

k.- Ehj ^ m back a;7unf did he? 

4 , - *0% s i r he come back. 

Q-.- (kaii you t e l l what year you saw ki.J? 

A,,- No, s i r , 

Q.«- (ka,, ^ou st&ta the namee of any Choctaw Citizens, that 

.'• m il ir? MSB John Patterson out here, that are l iving 

no?/? 

k.- Me, rdr. I lon*t know, 

<\- Ldr# 3r\r, .e*r«, you are a.<) Intel U icnt man., you know 

about these old men, you know 'where old mm Fulaom liv4d? 

A,.~ h i . ^ t inDokesville. 

•".- You knew where Peter ikatubbe lived? 

, \ , < —53— 





Oh- Where did he l ive? 

A,- In IflasiistftpJu 

Qt* 'h i t was his nan©? 

A., - Amontubbe. 

Q«- Where did you see him? 

A.- Baw him there in Mississippi • 

; , - H -re did he l ive in the Ctate of Mississippi? 

A«- I don't know exactly where about a; somewhere on a farm 

on tho line of Mississippi and Alabama. 

C..- How l i i you s$i ac anointed with him? 

A.- Would spt acquainted with then: old Indiana r:hen they 

"-..raid Qam over to my old roasters to drink whisky and 

Ch- Did you see him on the Yazoo, too? 

k§.* Ho, i:dr, ww l i ted r wwhirt near Rank in, 

( , - Did yourninster live clone to nankin on a farm? 

A.- &», sir , lie had a farm. 

Q.- Bow sany croOB did tie make before he moved? 

A.- I don't know, 

h,~ Tro, throe or four, just glirw your beet judgment. 

A.- I t | to HI Uki 8 l i v e ! on his brother in law's 

place and male two oropa and then moved across the 

ri?#r, but to to l l you vhcircr north cant or south, l 

could not t e l l you, and he inade crops there and sold the 

place aid started weat« 

Q„- He male two croos there? 

A.- 1 don't know whether he made one or two, but i am sat­

isf ied he stayed in Mississippi three years. 

Q#- So the greater part of the time you lived in Mississippi 

—55— 





Q.- What l id he say to you? 

A,- He asked m if X knew John Patterson and Jim and others, 

and I said i did. 

Q#- Did he ask you about Pe/^gie? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- About the others? 

A.- Yes, sir, yes sir, but I could not tell you much about 

it. 

Q.- He asked yon aoout that? 

A.- Yes, sir, he did not talk much because X knew. 

Q.- You said you would not have known this Pe.--$Lo, eiceot 

you net her ini'exas, and she was the only one you re­

membered? 

A.- YeB# s i r . 
i 

Q.- You would not have remembered her except that your attention 

was called to it by your remark, is that true? 

A.- xes, sir. 

Q.- These children that you tes t i f ied about in your examina­

tion in chief, you say tha,t you would not have known t i » 

this Pe *^e that you saw in Mississippi? 

A.- I niet her in th is way; I was in Texas and th is mm Von 

male himself acquainted, with me, and X said your uncle \ . 

raised me and he said here is John Patterson's daughter; 

she i s a Choctaw and her name is P e ^ i e Marlow [i | 

0 . - That i s how you~: t your information? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q,- Mhm he told you that then you remembered seeing her in 

Mississippi * ' j 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

- 5 7 -



k 

Q 

Q,- How old was she when you saw her inthe State of Missis­

sippi ? 

- I cannot t e l l you. 

* You saw how many children there? Two that you remember? 

- Saw them with the other children, if I would t ry to t e l l 

that, I would t e l l something I did not know, 

- You can t e l l something about t he i r size; they came with 

thei r parents on horse b%ok, 

- I wm told they was MB children, but I could not t e l l 

the si2e« 

- You can give some idea? 

- No, s i r . 

- But 1 ins i s t on your 'ivinr- jur>t what you remember as to 

the size of these children; how old were JOJOX? they? 

- I could not t e l l you? 

- 14 or 15? 

I cannot t e l l ; I did not keep up with the a.~e of a person 

then. 

- Cannot you say whether they were babies? 

- They were Mg enou h to run; were not a l l babies. 

Some were small children and eorre of them were ltar§l? 

- .;ere any of them grown? 

- Mo, s i r , 

- How old was the b i g ^ s t one? 

- 1 dbn't know. 

# There were some of them big enou-̂ a that the i r mother 

would take them when she ?/ent to v i s i t ? 

- *es, s i r . 

- Don't you know thgfe th is woman Patterson was a married 
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woman living in Jdc the State of iennessee inl.630. 

A.- She was? 

C - Yes, sir. 

A.- Why these falks were l iving in Mssiss ipni ; the Pattersons 

were living; in Mississippi. 

v . - Don't you know you are mistaken about that and that eh© 

w^s not liviriT there in 1830. Don't you know she was 

a mar"led woman in 1830; married to this mix iv'arlow and 

wis his second wife -and was l iving in the State of 

Tennessee- 2 

A.- 1 know that John Patterson was l iving in Tennessee, but to 

t e l l you ^here h is daughter was l iving before that, I 

don't know; i told you she was l iving in Texas; 1 saw 

the children when they were small in Mississippi and 

never saw them any raore. 

§ . - Can you swear that the Pe 7-5.0 Pntterson you saw in Texas 

mm the same that you saw in Mississippi? in 1830? 

Q4- 1 don't know what year i t was I seen her. 

Q,- You left there in 1830? 

A.- Yes, sir* 

V.- You saw them be-fore that? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.- The was a child there with her mother? 

A.- Yes, s i r . 

Q.~-You say that John Patterson used to drink whisky there 

with your old master; now hove you not gf»t that wrong; 

Did not you .^et th is information from the people that oara© 

to you about ' this case? 

A.- Mo, s ir , i just told what I know. 

—59— 



. - :%Ta, m £ t e t t e r of fact, don't you kno^ tha t this T?oman, 

Fe nj.e r^tterr-on, Mi l iving in ths f t i t e of Tennessee 

at that time? 

A.- In 18301 

' . - Yes, air , and that she »Ei not l iving to iitftissiptii at 

a l l , bat that rhe Mi *rovr u . m& had rnrried *»n' Ml 

lititi ia thr gt&tf of lonnonpe? . 

A.- I don't know; I told you I n I bar m 1620; 1 sav her 

before that * i » they Mi children; I expect -he waa 

older than 1 am. 

«;,.- You are certain that John Jratternon was not a half breed; 

iton11 you know lie was a half breed? 

A.- No, l l r , if he waF he hii not aha* i t , 

By Jai& Foote; 

0.- few, Bieh&rd, I taittto krio^ how o I Ihic woman Pe ^ e 

i-^ttercon MS ^hen y")U =r̂ ? .her ia inxnp? 

A.- I i.OB*t know. 

Q.- How ..-1 \ lid si e !oo> to tot 

A.- I 9 in..ot t e l l you. 

Q.- You can give your bent jud-';pent; you Lon't havi to give 

V B exact d>te. 

A.- I can not t e l l you. 

Q.- fan she tmaty five or thir ty? 

A.- I C"-ii.net t e l l you. 

Q.» Did g§ha have any ehildren? 

A.- I law soma children there; supposed they were hers . 

. - You saj you had seen hW as a n u l l child in Hollies County, 

Mieeieeippi? 

A.- Nof a i r . 

Q.- ahere 'lid you see her? 

—6>-
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A,- 1 HI Lelli ' i , ; pmt *hat I learned wi en I w*m the re ; there 

mm a l i t t l e toxTx trie re oalled Rtnkin, but i t was not 

f a r . 

C - ft i ;*v k i t .ankni Li m thfl Taip Ri?sr, 

k f . *t waa not fwt* 

• a 1 /ou ever hmx of Tchtula? 

- ien, r i r . 

- . - ird of Le ci i.-to/,? 

- lb, sir* 
. ,r . rorherrcai; 

- ' - m*t kmi» anything about Ha-ihij County, UB^iss ippi? 

- Ho, s i r , i don ' t know anytl In - v.out t h a t . 

- ' ;• 're t e e t i f y u r : about a l i t t l e plao* s i tua ted near 

azoo Jiiver, that they ca l led Rmkiaf 

; . - ier;t r i r* 

-- \ V i t I s rs t vrrr fnr fro: henry i -1 - nq. ? 

- Ho, s i r , i t war not far* 

• \M to whether Uc plans i s there mm or not, you don ' t 

A.- $0, s i r , 

C,- Y/i ntate^ a ^Idle &gp that ileriua^ .ratU-rnon f~e ca l led 

. MI tab be, lid hi •• I ® *y >y o LJC r n<une ' 

/ . . - John. 

- Bll M -r * - Jolu or Hcr;air -^ t ie r^c i ; md hie father1 $ 

n <" W ;T iJBDntubbe.f 

A..* *ea, d r . 
: . - lie Wm mm* t ines ca l l ed John or Herman m'i sometimes 

oniubee? 

l t * *08f r i r . 

—63— 



Bf JirH* . c-vcr; 

' . - You vera mmr birJc there nfUr 1630? 

I #~ !Iof s i r ? 

' . ,- You tattH ktm> wni chnn-trs have been ©ale M i n since 

you le f t ? 

A,- I #£* ** nwn 3o«n at ? t i ; lrr , rbc ra i lately oonra froo:« 

t] ere mi )Q t o l l i.x; that thr p l w i called I>nkis* * • » 1 

ttgyg there, i s -o t there now. 
Mr. McPherren; 

: ' . - You $m*i hnw t u t KnnUn «ns % portoffice* 

&*» I$* ;ur» 

%- K«ti s i r , 

»~ fji-1 a boy? 

Mr. Mansfield.' 

Q»» ?®H tesa i f i e i fie to the full bloo«1 nwc of the father 

of Jote Pattrmon? 

i f * *ec, s i n 

. - You o«^iot be rsieWken 15b ut Uintf 

,%• 1%, nir# 1 db&H think so« 

;.««- You knev the full blood :mmn bottor th-*n you <lri the 

8n$2ip,h? 

*.»*• I t t i c i r , 

»• 1 will Md F>U t ; I n ; l i t **uy bo% ©vor t e l l yon thie wm*M 

|»* I Wicv. KKHlnbte, I kuw he war. John1?: father, 

\ m~ ty\x nre gan A UMI .•*«»? 

A** I doiift t!i;,k I ran dLrt-fcrjr; ab at i t . 

. - fm sny you tarw M* father *nd M i name Ml MNNtiWNltf 

,~ *»•* fir* 

I t . r re th*?re *ny brothers of J$te ^att^rcon? 
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In the Choctaw and Chiohaeaw C i t i z e n s h i p Court , s i t t i n g fit South 

SCcAlenter, in the Cent ra l M u t r i o t of t h e Indifta T e r r i t o r y , 

" . err:;, 1904. 

Jane ' J '*rrs , et r J • , 

The Chocta;. s - ' Chickasaw H a t i o n s . 

Mo. 109. 

i> ' x ' oi* cor v . 

On t h i s 28th day of Marah, 1904, t h i s cause coming on 

f o r f i n a l decteiOR, the sane havlu ; h e r e t o f o r e been submitted 

upon tl 6 3 ; • , the evidence, and t i t o u r r b«ln| well and 

suf f i i v i sed i n the premises , dotli f ind t h a t t he 

p l a i n t i f f * ! Jane SEarro, Clarn B e l l e . . larrs, 113 e- ~ l , . . r son , 

Richard M« Alderson, Ju l io . May Alderson or Jul ia , M, Alder son, 

Bar ley H. Alderson, Keoecca Smith, Keuben Har r i son , Jane Smith, 

l iar j P r i t c h a r d , F l o r a Pr i t c h a r d , John P r i t c h a r d , Dennis? P r i t c h a r d 

or Dermic P r i t c h a r d , Jenn ie P r i t c h a r d or Jane f r i t c n s r d , J u l i a A. 

i i l i t©n or J u l i o Hamilton, JDelle .via;- Jv.. i i t o n or De l ia May 

:•• i l t o n , lonely hru a i t o n , i~ -JTTS or Samuel Marrti, Bertha vCarrs, 

',.c. " r r s cr - r rs and John h a r r e , a re not ! bled to 

he o a 1 or tool red ciM^O'.s of the Choctaw Mation, or to 

rolls • t ae wic] , or to ooy r i hi i t eve r ©wi] i refrct t j 

v. '• . ' • • • * - - '; a t i t has no j u r i s d i c t i o n 

Oyer t h e p e t i t i o n e r s Rot . ^ r r s , Jenni e i i a r r a , d y r t l c i l a r r s , 

J e r r y Alderson, Paul E. Hcri ;e, Becky P r i t c h a r d , Xoey P r i t c h a r d , 

Thadioua Hamilton, Keufcen Hamil ton,Clarence Mar r e , B e l l i e U a r r s , 

May Mar r e and Minnie Marrs . 

(1) 



IT l i ' '., , J X • , D t h a t the 

runit. '. ' .:. of t i p l a i n t i f f 4 $%m B a m , C law r r a j ,#a 

Aj'Ur^crij Rig] i I "» Alder ion, J u l ! *«0u • JUlia M.i 

Ald^rr«r,at B'jrlo; E£« £1 ^rsorij Vtebect *tr., l a a a , 

fan* "•.•; tj j :..\r, Prlta}iafd f l H a r a Frltofo&r&i John ^ritchatf&j 

•*: i 2 ri fc< i r or Ommi <* i r? be: ' i n $ Je ; , , i , e r J- ne 

nig J u l i " A. Ha«Otoii cr J t t l ta :!" Litrm, . 

Ha Alton .:r D II i ! a, *BM JBGM "' .i-ton, f§a r r * c r 

Stouel rr*.?, Bartfc'- ^rr^i, To- : > r n ? or Karra 4tt& 

9 X r r r c , be d. I i, ay a t 

of t>@ Uioctau IIa t ioi l | and not .>it„H!< ! •- an?Q ' 

Q i t i s ana , and o#t i I •:/ rii " t 

tharafrt iag and i fen Kha p a t i t i o n a r a Rob#i*t I urn > J a n a t a ::r\.rrsf 

Hyr t l a bMrrS| £ar*$ 414tj*« , Paul * Ki-x.;*.-, . I ' r t t o i ^ rc i , 

laagr P r t i eha r& f Tadioiu* Ha . ' i i t cn , Reube-t "• r -»ce 

"rrr4, H t l l i a x&rra, arr« • r r a , HM 

ria us juy , o5r p a t i t i o n i a ••* • 

i«f Jted a. 

! I - ! " " • 

Aai 1 . i ; & ;a* 



Tn the Choctaw and Chickasaw c i t i z e n s h i p Court , s i t t i n g a t 

SOtith ?TcAIester, in the Cent ra l D i s t r i c t of the Indian T e r r i ­

t o r y , in the? Choctaw n a t i o n , varch Term, 1904, 

Jane K a r r s , e t a l . , 

Appe l l an t s , 

v s . B»«199. 

C h o c t aw and C h i c ka a aw Ha 11 o n s » 
Appel lees . 

Bps ie Underwood, e t a l . , 
Appe l l an t s , 

v s . Ho. 73, 

Choctaw and Chickasaw n a t i o n s , 
Appe l l an t s , 

Geo rge Lea White, e t a l , , 
Appe l l an t s , 

vs* . 120. 

Choctaw and Chickasaw Tiations, 
Appe l l ees . 

$e orge Lee fh11 e, e t a l . , 
Appe l l an t s , 

v s . !To, 125. 

Choctaw and Chickasaw HatJons, 
Appellees. 

0PP7I01I, by FOOT!, Assoc ia te Judge. 

All of these cases cone he re on appeal under the Act 

of Ju ly 1 , 1902, from the United s t a t e s Court f o r the Cent ra l 

D i s t r i c t of the Indian T e r r i t o r y . All of the a p p e l l a n t s claim 

Choctaw Ind ian fclood or i n t e rmar r i age wi th persons c la iming i t , 

through the same coirmon a n c e s t r e s s , Peggy or F a r g a r e t Marlowe, 

a l l e g e d to be the daughter of one Moontubbee or John P a t t e r s o n . 

The opin ion in t h i s case i s to determine the r i g h t s 

of a l l of t he a p p e l l a n t s before t h i s Court , i n each and every 



of the stove styled cases . Tt rap agreed by both p a r t i e s 

appellant ani appellee that lit* evidence In a l l these cases* 

so far as appl icable , should be considered In each arid every 

of lb* causes, end hence t h i s opinion a U#« l( then a l l . 

separate judgments, however, are to he rendered in each, case. 

Susan El iza P i e rce , a while wmmn of respectable 

appearance and hearing, was introduced as a witness for the 

Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations, who t e s t i f i e d In substance, as 

follows; 

She s ta ted that she was f i f ty-seven years of age and 

l ived in Fannin County, in the s t a t e 1* Texas, and had l ived 

in tha t s t a t e about f i f t y / e a r s . Sne "'as acq<u Ltttaft with 

Reuben Marlow's wife, Trar^arot or ?vf:fy, vhc i s the common 

ancestress through whom these appl icant*, and those involved 

:!n the case of Epsie Underwood, and of Jane I larrs , and others 

mentioned here in , claim t h e i r Indian blood. $h.i j .%t acquainted 

with th is woman, the wife of l a ban Wmrlm$ cal led Margaret or 

PeoT/, about f i f t y years ago, and knew her up to about twelve 

or t h i r t een years ago; that we'.'an is nov; ol^ad, and she went 

before that time, about eight or nine years ago In* witness 

th inks , to Cooke County, Texas, and then she, Pe4:^y -w ~"ar,,aret 

barlow, as she was ca l led , came to the Indian Ter r i to ry . The 

witness knew t a g woman about as well as she could; l ived 

within three or four hundred yards of her , and was very intimate 

with the family for a great many years . She f i r s t heard ta lk 

in tha t family about a Choc I a?/ claim and Choctaw blood, sh© 

cannot t e l l the exact time, but i t was about the time thst a 

man named Real, a member of that family, came back from t h e 

Tndian Ter r i to ry , and through a l l the years tha t she had thus 

been intimate with th is family she never heard any talk among 



them about t-'-eJr having Choctaw b.l --ed, nut IJ th is "ar tha .Real 

came to the Indian Ter r i to ry , then she >ie;»ro the ©Id lady Peggy 

or Margaret TCawlow ta lk about i t , arid she heard her say she 

had BO Indian blood in her a dozen times? an! that th-e old 

lady did not l ike for her de^cend-ints I® mafee the claim of 

Choctaw blood which they did, and so far as she .knows till old 

lady did not join In the claim; and in fact the records in a l l 

these cases ghow that she did not jo in in any of them. 

On cross ex am in at! on the witness r e i t e r a t ed tha t the 

old lady above referred to to ld her t h i she bad no Indian 

bl M I It ! or end t h i ill* looked with disfavor on the claim her 

chi ldren were making because she hstf no Indian blood, arid thefc 

§1 e told her BO a AOAMi t ines a f t e r the Beal s moved to the 

Indian Terr i tory from Texas. That she* the old lady, always 

repudiated that she had Indian blood, and that she thought the 

old lady said so because she, the old lady, thought she had no 

India blood. 

There was then Introduced a record in pr int of a 

case, Wo.12742, wherein the Choctaw Nation and the United 

s t a t e s were p a r t i e s , and p a r t i c u l a r reference made to pages 

255 and 908 thereof, wherein i s given the family and children 

of woontubbee a Choctaw Indian whom the applicants in t h i s 

Court a l l ege to he Ident ical with John Pat terson whom these 

claimants now for the f i r s t time in the case, according to the 

or ig ina l p e t i t i o n s , claim to have been, the father of the old 

lady ftggy or ^ar^anet Marl or. 

Attention was also called to the fact tha t the app l i ­

cants had re l ied heretofore in the case below, on the af f idavi t 

of a man. named Sam Perry, who stands before t h i s Court .in other 

cases as an unre l iab le witness . 





&g to -Fhut b l | grmad »@th*r fe©l<3 h t e aru iuco-Tii.>/lont, being 

hearsay m i s e l f serv.tr.g, i ®& * i* dec! a r a i i >n of ->ne in h i s 

©wis bohalf to ano ther s sempetemt *hi a a>; I isti the I n t e r e s t 

of Hi t d e c l a r a n t hot not in h l f o r he r f avor , *?@e P . Is T. R.R. 

r a , v . gfiap«@B| 14 P e t e r s , II. S* Si;.'). Ct . on e f t s* 443, 

George Lee Wilt© one of the c l a i o o n i s *'as 1 ?1 r duced 

f o r lh« r.npe!),*-'i3, IT* s t n t t i t h a t he f i r s t mm i f n Texas to 

the Indian T e r r i t o r y About 1892, Hi Li?« i s lh« C o«1 

n a t i o n about t h ree years? tta ,( WWBt B M to Texas tc srtnd up 

h i s f a t h e r ' s «* ta t« , -• id was I f#3ea.i t h r t e y t ' a r s , but h l f 

i n t e n t i o n was to co^t* fcac-r to v e T*rrliorjr« His mother nas 

Cyrti- la <rarlmv, the a u ^ t ' j r f • th< el nady Peggy or ^fargaret 

bar low. T!J 3 evio'ono* as I Q kin a l l eged a n c e s t o r , lh# i ; \f-;ed 
T>r 'ootoo)hoo or £en i n-* rmnn> was mere hearsay s ta tements as to 

cJ air ' s af ktii rand v.< ' , - *̂ ooy n~ " ' a r r a r r t Harlow, and Is 

Incompetent . fhi , basse i s an I n t e r e s t s ^ wi tness < >•! in h i s 

o r i g i n a l a] -J, .teat "Ion isnlcsa 3 1 r ?on cf Koontusb'ee a ' l a / John 

Pi 11 :":-o'. \rrjr }cnew t h i a 11 n exc sj31 by t r a d i t i 0 n ? an€ h i s 

nat ter*tending i s that Troontubbee :ls ©a Ward*a Rol l as a 

" iss iss in 5" 1 - Cheat an e3aJk'»inf > "dor the i r ^a ' , of 1850, He 

hoard t h i s f ron Henry Bplngtea* h i s a t t o r n e y , a t Caddo. Then 

he says he b e l i e v e s he f i r s t heard I t front Dixon Darant , a 

w i tnes s tor h i n . He says Peggy or 'Margaret* h i s grandmother^ 

was never a p a r t y to any claim as a Choctaw "by blood. His 

grand mother came from. Missour i to Texas many years ago. He 

f i r s t looked over "^r1*s Rol l a t the i n s t ance of Henry Bylng-

t o n . i s sold h i s l a s t land he owned in Texas four years ago 

a f t e r h i s admission to ho a c i t i z e n by Jnci.oe Clayton of the 

United S t a t e s Oonrt f o r the Cent ra l B i f f t r i e t of the Indian Ter­

r i t o r y . His b o t h e r ' s s i s t e r was the f i r s t one t ha t told, him 

about Hoontufcbee and Ward's Ro l l ; before t h a t he had only heard 



tha t Peggy was the daughter of John Pat te rson , and he never 

heard h i s mother say anything about being re la ted to Woontubbee. 

There was then offered as witness for the p l a i n t i f f s 

Buke barlow, a step-son of Pegrty Marlow, h i s father being her 

husband a f t e r the death of fell mother, He i s a white man and 

qui te venerable In appearance. He was somewhere about four or 

six years old when his fa ther married Pe^cy or - ranmret Fallow 

and he was horn about the year 1826, On cross examination he 

s t a t e s he was horn in the s t a t e of Alabama and afterwards l ived 

in the s t a t e of Mssour i ; h i s father l ived In Vrigfrt County in 

tha t s t a t e and then moved to the County of tfadison In the same 

S ta te , and he himself l ived there un t i l he went to the State of 

Texas about the year 1850, When he f i r s t ca uo to h i s father*s 

home fron Alabama, when a f t e r h i s mother 's death, as a small 

chi ld he had been l i v ing with h ' s grandfather in Alabama, 

he found his fa ther and h i s step-mother Peggy or Margaret 

barlow, l iv ing In the s t a t e of Tennessee in the Cumberland 

mountains. The Cumberland mountains as is well known are in 

' a s t Tennessee, f a r removed from the Choctaw nation in Missis** 

e ipp i . They l ived there six months and then went to Alabama 

a f t e r the mother of Peggy aforesaid, who l ived in Jackson 

County, Alabama, He Jtnew h i s step-mother Peggy from t h a t 

time u n t i l her death about two and a half or three years ago. 

He knows not what her blood was or who her fa ther was save by 

hearsay. He thinks I t was about 1832 tha t h is fa ther married 

Peggy. Again he says the f i r s t time he ever ©aw her was in 

the Cumber land mountains in Tennessee. 

I t appears in evidence In the Epsie underwood case, 

a companion case to t h i s , that the said Epsie Underwood, a wit* 

ness for hersel f , made an aff idavi t in 1896 to be used befor e 

the Commission to the Five Civil ized Tribes , ex-parte before her 



at torney also act ing as Votary Publ ic . All th i s witness 

Bpsi€i underwood, knew about heir being a Choctaw by blood, i s 

hearsay and inadmissible, ghi f i r s t remembers herself in 

.Visscuri and then in Texas, glftO has no knowledge of the 

residence of her ancestors e i t he r in Mississippi or Alabama. 

Crawford ?rarlowr, In* brother of J^psie Underwood, as a 

witness, t e s t i f i e d , he claims to have been admitted and h is 

s i s t e r *'rs. I$*l .in |he sane case, which has not been appealed. 

His {-rand-nother Pe •> .>' ^arlow was never an ap 11 cant for admis­

sion to c i t izenship as a Choctaw by blood; he knows nothing 

except i f hearsay as tc her Indian blood; he never heard, h is 

mother say to what blood ^Ver^y1* belonged; he was bom in 

Missouri. Mrs. Beal, h i s aunt, was a witness in 1892, for him 

before the cheetah council and forT'psie Hnderv/^od a lso; h i s 

mother was l i v i n g in 1396 and be rktesnot remember whether she 

s t i l l l ived in Texas or had removed to the Indian Ter r i to ry . 

His fa ther owned land in ?.*iss<kuri when he l e f t there and went 

to Texas; he s ta r ted fron Kifttftttri to Texas going through L i t t l e 

Hock, Arkansas and Cla rksv i l l e , Texas; he has qui te a number of 

brothers and s i s t e r s 'whose descendants now l i v e in Texas; he 

c l a i s s , by hearsay, about one sixteenth Choctaw blood. 

Others of the in teres ted witnesses t e s t i f y that 

tflfliy ° r Margaret ?,farlow did not apply for c i t izenship in the 

Choctaw nat ion find did not want i t . 

William A. Underwood a witness for claimants says, 

on cross examination, t ha t he nm®r heard h i s wife had any 

Choctaw blood u n t i l a f t e r h i s marriafee; the older members of 

the family s ta r ted the claims and he joined in . His wi fe ' s 

mother Peggy or Har^aret Farlow was the oldest of the family 

and knew more than anyone e l se about whether they had Indian 



blood or not, and she seems to have denied to disinterested 

witnesses tine and again that she had any Indian blood, 

X have not been able to find, after diligent search 

and examination, of all the oral evidence adduced here, in all 

the cases herein intended to be decided? and mentioned in the 

caption of this opinion, any evidence! from any of the parties 

hereto, of a corn pet ent nature which shows th?;t t^e ^^orr " or 

"Wargaret" "arlow, under whom all these appellants claim, had 

any Indian blood inner veins, 

Although these parties originally do not seem to have 

claimed through Foontubbee or John Patterson, as they claim him 

to have been, yet now they do claim through him. 

It Is Interesting and instructive inthis connection 

to advert to pages 50, 255 and 908 of a record before the 

Court of claims of the United states, entitled the Choctaw 

Nation against the United States. It will there be found that 

according to that record Moontubbee in 1838, had as his oldest 

child a man named James Patterson; that he was 22 years old 

in 1838, or 15 years old in 1831, Of 16 in 1052, and living 

in the state of Mississippi, andy at this Peggy or ITargaret 

Farlow (nee Patterson) was then married up in the Cumberland 

mountains in Tennessee, an! the record of that case shows from 

the lips of her alleged father Hoontufcbee, under oath, that he 

had no such child as she was, and that; his son and oldest child, 

was only 15 years of age in 1831 and 16 years old in 1832. 

This alone utterly disposes of any descent on the part of this 

"Pengy" or "Margaret" jrarlow from Moontubbee, and many other 
ing 

facts appear^ on the above mentioned pages of that record show 

the same thing, 

Then again D. D. Durant, an affidavit maker for these 





a p p e a l , who a re p r o p e r l y before t h i s Court , (and none a r e ex­

cept those inc luded in t h e judgments below, and in the p e t i t i o n 

f o r appeal h e r e ) , a re e n t i t l e d to be dec l a r ed c i t i z e n s of the 

Choctaw TTation, e i t h e r by blood or i n t e rmar r i age as t h e i r claim 

may be , or e n t i t l e d to enrol lment as such, or tc any r i g h t s 

which flow therefrom, JHfB IT T^ SO GRDEBXB* 

(Signed.) II. 3.. T?oote _ _ 
- "fo? pf t- tf, ,r(~e# 

Ve concur: 

(Signed) gpencer B. h&ans 
I H l e f Judge. 

(s igned) f a l t e r L. "\mver _ 
Assoc l i a • 7i i "rf^e. 
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s*i4* / o t , • ».„ h&t g$u f l i # # 4 j / : I i»i ftH# : rmm cdrvm >»fei i r : W t m i i # € 

Stating Court ?i.t ^oiitli ^ A l u i t t r t f t r *n« f* r r#d t̂ nd §fti*tlfi«i to t h i s 
p rop«r 

Boiirtj tluit t:"]-'; Hourb xaiyce am orci«r for - »ts©h tranfrf*!' and o« r t i f i c&t lon$ 

tha t tbiss ^ourt eon»i/Hr ;>nd r«nri** i^t " ? i i c w I |Si£ f \L:Xjr >,.*nr yvur 

Mftlt lf t iuiri h t m ill ' | §M . i •">> ivc tfcwn t o T»« m«2&b«ri of tjti« Choctaw Trib» of 

Ind iana "by "blood nr tatimarrftlfi ftl ?wli o - o F.»VV b«-'«,na • n t i t l « th«3a 

to th# r i r fc ta srnd Hine-fAt*? * * nueJi IncUfcn»_ 

GWUL* sVVt (XhThl. 
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